
 

 

1 

 

Becker County Planning Commission  1 

May 31st, 2023 2 

 3 

Members Present: Chairman Dave Blomseth, Tom Disse, Kohl Skalin, Tommy Ailie, County 4 

Commissioner Erica Jepson, Commissioner John Okeson, Harvey Aho, Nick Bowers, Steve 5 

Lindow, Jeff Moritz, Kim Mattson, Craig Hall, and Zoning Director Kyle Vareberg. Members 6 

Absent: Mary Seaberg 7 

  8 

Chairman Dave Blomseth called the Planning Commission meeting to order at 6:00 pm. 9 

Introductions were given. Becker County Zoning Technician Nicole Bradbury recorded the minutes. 10 

 11 

Harvey Aho made a motion to approve the minutes from the April 26th, 2023, meeting and the 12 

May 16th, 2023, special meeting. Disse second. All members in favor. Motion carried.  13 

 14 

Chairman Dave Blomseth explained the protocol for the meeting and stated that the 15 

recommendations of the Planning Commission would be forwarded to the County Board of 16 

Commissioners for final action.  17 

 18 

 19 

 20 

 21 

New Business: 22 

 23 

1. APPLICANT: Richard C & Darci D Strand 1131 136th Ave NE Finley, ND 24 

Project Location: 13370 270th Ave Detroit Lakes, MN 56501 LEGAL LAND 25 

DESCRIPTION: Tax ID Numbers: 19.0312.000 & 19.0312.002 Section 15 26 

Township 138 Range 041; 15-138-41 E1/2 E1/2 SE1/4 LESS 2AC (19-312-1), LESS 27 

5.01AC (19-312-3) LESS 2 AC (19-312-2), LESS 19.32AC (19-312-4), LESS .87AC 28 

(PT 19-312-3).; 15-138-41 PT NE1/4 SE1/4: BEG NE COR SE1/4, W 16RDS (264'), 29 

S 20RDS (330"), E 16RDS, N 330' TO POB. APPLICATION AND 30 

DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT: 1. Request a Change of Zone from Agricultural to 31 

Residential. 2. Request a Preliminary Plat for eight (8) lots. 32 

 33 

 34 

Richard Strand presented the application.  35 

 36 

As there was no one to speak for or against the application, testimony was closed. 37 

 38 

There was one letter received and read by all members before the hearing and is entered into 39 

record below: 40 

 41 



 

 

2 

 

 42 
 43 

 44 

 45 

Vareberg noted that lots one (1) through three (3) will be adjusted on the final plat from nine 46 

tenths (.9) of an acre to one (1) acre. 47 

 48 



 

 

3 

 

Lindow asked if the Preliminary Plat before them was different than the one they had originally 49 

seen. 50 

 51 

Vareberg said the major changes were that it went from a proposed thirty-three (33) foot wide 52 

easement to a sixty-six (66) foot corridor. 53 

 54 

Testimony closed. 55 

 56 

Okeson commented that with the changes it should take care of some of the concerns that the 57 

city had. 58 

 59 

Blomseth asked if it meets city requirements. 60 

 61 

Okeson said it may not cover all, but some. 62 

 63 

There was some discussion on the future annexation by the city, and the unknown timetable for 64 

that to occur. 65 

 66 

Lindow asked if there would be a better place to put storage units. 67 

 68 

Vareberg said there is already a storage unit there. 69 

 70 

Skalin commented that they don’t have control over what the owner wants to build on their 71 

property. He stated that the Change of Zone request is from Agricultural to Residential and then 72 

it’s up to the owner what they want to build whether it be a house or storage building. 73 

 74 

 75 

MOTION: Disse motioned to approve the application; Bowers second. Roll Call; All 76 

in favor. Motion carried. 77 

 78 

 79 

 80 

 81 

2. APPLICANT: Metry Family Trust 20181 Moe Lake Rd Audubon, MN 56511 82 

Project Location: 29292 Co Hwy 54 Detroit Lakes, MN 56501 LEGAL LAND 83 

DESCRIPTION: Tax ID Numbers: 03.0049.001 & 03.0049.002 Section 06 84 

Township 138 Range 040; EAST 20 AC OF SE1/4 OF NW1/4; PT NE1/4 SW1/4: 85 

COMM NE COR TH W 33.73' AL N LN TO POB; TH S 93.88',SW 375.42',SWLY 86 

196.20' WLY 140.98', TH SWLY 59.27' TO CTR LN CSAH #54, NWLY 113.67' 87 

AL HWY, TH NLY 413.60' TO N LN TH E 608.42' TO POB APPLICATION AND 88 

DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT: Request a Conditional Use Permit for mining 89 

operations. 90 

 91 

 92 

Colin and Jess Metry presented the application. Colin stated that he understands the neighbors’ 93 

concerns and explained that since he will already need to excavate the site in order to build there 94 



 

 

4 

 

eventually, he would like to sell sand to help offset the cost of the land. He stated that the goal is 95 

to build within five (5) years.  96 

Jess Metry said this will not be a gravel pit, and that it will just be removal of sand in the area 97 

where they want to build. She commented that there will only be occasional equipment, that they 98 

are just knocking down large mounds on the property to help level the land, and that there will be 99 

no crushing. She also stated they have access to a water truck if needed to knock down dust.  100 

 101 

Disse asked if they would sell to anyone who wanted to come in and buy.  102 

 103 

Metry said there won’t be anyone onsite all the time, but if someone contacted him and wanted 104 

to buy, then yes, he would sell. 105 

 106 

Hall asked what he thought the actual hours would be if not 7:00 am to 7:00 pm. 107 

 108 

Metry said based on history of when they usually need dirt anywhere from 7:00 am to 5:00 to 109 

7:00 pm.  110 

 111 

Lindow said in consideration to neighbors could he maybe do 8:00 am to 4:00 pm or 5:00 pm.  112 

 113 

Metry said he’s not stuck on 7:00 am to 7:00 pm, he would just like to know that if he needs one 114 

more load to finish a job that he can go back and grab it. 115 

 116 

Jepson asked how often he needs to go back for a later load beyond 5:00 pm. 117 

 118 

Metry said it’s not often, only if a project is in crunch time. 119 

 120 

Jepson asked if he would agree to changing the time. 121 

 122 

Metry said he would if he needed to. 123 

 124 

Both Skalin and Aho commented that the hours could be added as a condition. 125 

 126 

Jepson asked how long he is planning to run this operation. 127 

 128 

Metry said ideally, he would like to build in five (5) years. 129 

 130 

Jepson asked if there is enough sand to last five (5) years. 131 

 132 

Metry said he was confident he would not run out. 133 

 134 

Ailie asked what he has for equipment. 135 

 136 

Metry stated he has one large payloader and an excavator. 137 

 138 

Disse asked if he is planning to create a housing development on the property. 139 

 140 



 

 

5 

 

The Metrys stated it will not be. They want the whole twenty-six (26) acres for themselves. 141 

 142 

Jepson asked if they are only mining where they want to build.  143 

 144 

Metry said yes. 145 

 146 

Jepson clarified that they are only here because they want to sell the sand and commented they 147 

would have to clear the property anyways in order to build and that would be allowed, but 148 

because they want to sell it, they needed to apply for a Conditional Use Permit. 149 

 150 

Skalin commented that if it was for a County Highway project, they wouldn’t even need to get a 151 

permit. 152 

 153 

Lindow said he doesn’t think it makes sense to bulldoze such a large area. 154 

 155 

Skalin commented that maybe he wants a large barn. That we don’t know what he’s wanting to 156 

build. 157 

 158 

Blomseth said they don’t get to determine what Metry wants to build. 159 

 160 

Skalin commented that there is a gravel pit by Long Lake in a high-density area. 161 

 162 

Lindow asked about protecting the wetland from runoff. 163 

 164 

Metry stated that he has spoken with Becker County Soil and Water and that he will be putting in 165 

a berm to protect the wetland.  166 

 167 

Peter Laplante, neighbor spoke and shared his concerns regarding wildlife, noise, weeds, and 168 

protection of well water. He also stated his concern in the event that the property would change 169 

hands, he said he wouldn’t want a large quarry in his back yard. 170 

 171 

Jepson asked Laplante if his main concern would be a large company moving in if the Metrys 172 

sold the property. 173 

 174 

Laplante said it is a big concern. 175 

 176 

Wanda Sunram spoke and read the letter she had submitted and is entered below: 177 



 

 

6 

 

 178 
 179 

 180 

Eddie Musielewicz spoke and stated he does not think this is a smart way to develop the area. He 181 

commented on the noise in the area when others have excavated in preperation for a home and it 182 

was noisy. He said that was only one (1) week so five years concerns him. 183 

 184 



 

 

7 

 

Robert Horner, neighbor spoke and said he wants peace, quiet, and safety out there. He’s 185 

concerned with the speeds on Highway 54. He also commented that there is a difference between 186 

excavating and mining, and noted this is not a remote area. 187 

 188 

Tyler Larson, neighbor and said he thinks the amount they want to remove is excessive if the 189 

intentions are to build a house. He said he is also concerned about the future of the propety if 190 

they were to sell. 191 

 192 

Leonard Sunram, neighbor, spoke and said he has walked that property many times and that it is 193 

more than just sand. He also shared how close in proximity many housing developments are to 194 

this proposed project.  195 

 196 

Paul Kujawa, neighbor, spoke in favor of the application and said he has been out to the property 197 

and that Metry is not doing a gravel pit. He said Metry just wants to sell sand to help offset the 198 

cost of his lot. He stated it is no one’s business where or what the Metrys want to build and 199 

encouraged the board to allow him to do it. 200 

 201 

Amanda Musielewicz, neighbor, urged the Planning Commission to decline this request. She 202 

stated that she doesn’t understand why it has to be five (5) years. She also shared her concerns 203 

for safety and noise. 204 

 205 

Testimony Closed. 206 

 207 

Letters received regarding this application were read by all the member before the meeting and 208 

are entered into record below: 209 

 210 

 211 
 212 



 

 

8 

 

 213 
 214 

 215 



 

 

9 

 

 216 

 217 
 218 

 219 



 

 

10 

 

 220 



 

 

11 

 

 221 
 222 

 223 

Okeson said that based on studies, the speed limit along that portion of Hwy 54 falls under safety 224 

guidelines. 225 

 226 

Skalin said he thinks if a speed study was done that it would actually raise the limit. 227 

 228 

Jepson asked Metry if they thought two hundred fifty thousand (250,000) tons of extraction as 229 

stated in application is what is needed to get the property buildable. 230 

 231 

Metry said without having blueprints drawn up yet for a house and a barn he can’t say for 232 

certain. 233 

 234 

In regards to noise concerns, Hall asked if they would accept a condition for no crushing. 235 

 236 

Metry said yes, they would accept that. 237 

 238 



 

 

12 

 

Lindow asked how the sand is seprated from the rocks. 239 

 240 

Metry said a bucket on the excavator sifts it. 241 

 242 

Ailie commented that when he was out to the site it looks just like sugar sand out there. 243 

 244 

Lindow said he doesn’t think they need to do this in order to build a home. 245 

 246 

Skalin commented that if not for the desire to sell the sand, they could excavate the propety all 247 

they want without the Board’s permission, but stated that Metry is coming here, following the 248 

steps, and doing what he needs to do, but commented that maybe they could shorten the hours. 249 

 250 

Vareberg noted that this is the most transparent way for Metry to go about excavating his 251 

property. 252 

 253 

Jepson said she agrees with Skalin, but would like to figure out a better way to address what 254 

happens to the property in the event of a sale. 255 

 256 

Vareberg stated that if crushing is not allowed, given the close proximity to the City of Detroit 257 

Lakes and high value of the property, the market of this pit to a larger company just wouldn’t be 258 

there.  259 

 260 

Jepson said she would like to put some condition that would ensure they can do what they want 261 

to do, but to also protect neighbors in the event they lose their property. 262 

 263 

Vareberg said you can limit it to strictly pit run. 264 

 265 

Lindow said he does not feel this is what this area is for. 266 

 267 

Skalin asked Vareberg if the County Highway Department was okay with the approach.  268 

 269 

Vareberg stated the approach was existing. 270 

 271 

 272 

 273 

MOTION: Lindow motioned to deny the application. Due to a lack of second, 274 

motion failed. 275 

 276 

 277 

MOTION: Skalin motioned to approve the application with the stipulations that 278 

there be no crushing and the hours of operation be Monday through Friday 8:00 am 279 

to 5:00 pm.  280 

 281 

Aho asked if they can stipulate anything to address what happens if the property changes hands. 282 

 283 

Jepson also asked if there is any wording at all that could be added for protection. 284 



 

 

13 

 

 285 

Vareberg stated that the value of the land is going to outweigh the mineral rights, so its unlikely 286 

to be of high interest to larger companies but said he will look into the possibility of some form 287 

of wording before the County Board of Commissioners meeting on June 6th. 288 

 289 

 290 

Aho second. Roll Call; Disse, Moritz, Blomseth, Ailie, Bowers, Hall, Aho, and Skalin 291 

in favor. Lindow and Mattson opposed. Motion carried. 292 

 293 

 294 

 295 

Other Business: 296 

 297 

I) Tentative Date for Next Informational Meeting: June 21st, 2023; 8:00 am; 3rd Floor 298 

Meeting Room in the Becker County Courthouse, Detroit Lakes, MN. 299 

 300 

 301 

Since there was no further business to come before the Board, Ailie made a motion to 302 

adjourn. Disse second. All in favor. Motion carried. The meeting adjourned at 7:31 pm.  303 

 304 

 305 

________________________________                ________________________________ 306 

David Blomseth, Chairman    Jeff Moritz, Secretary 307 

 308 

ATTEST 309 

      _______________________________________ 310 

          Kyle Vareberg, Zoning Administrator  311 


